LIVE Incorporation Public Company Limited
Condensed notes to the interim financial information (Unaudited)

For the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 

1
General information
LIVE Incorporation Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated as a limited company in Thailand on 
12 November 1987 and subsequently converted to be a public company limited and listed on the Stock Exchanges in Thailand on 21 June 1994.  
The address of its registered office is at 60 Soi Praditmanutham 19, Praditmanutham Road, Kwang Ladprao, Khet Ladprao, Bangkok, 10230.  
For reporting purposes, the Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the Group.

The principal business operations of the Group are broadcast and media services.
These interim consolidated and company financial information have been approved by the Board of Directors on 
14 November 2014.
These interim consolidated and company financial information have been reviewed, not audited. 
2
Basis of preparation 
This interim consolidated and company financial information was prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted accounting principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The primary financial information (i.e. statements of financial position, statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows) are prepared in the full format as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The notes to the financial information are prepared in a condensed format according to Thai Accounting Standard 34 (revised 2012), ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ and additional notes are presented as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act.
Where necessary, the comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in the presentation in the current period as presented in Note 6.
The interim financial information should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.
An English version of the interim consolidated and company financial information has been prepared from the interim financial information that is in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language interim financial information shall prevail.

3
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the interim financial information are consistent with those used in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, except as disclosed in Note 4.
Costs that are incurred unevenly during the financial year are anticipated or deferred in the interim report only if it would also be appropriate to anticipate or defer such costs at the end of the financial year.

Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations which are effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are relevant to the Group:
	TAS 1 (revised 2012)
	Presentation of financial statements

	TAS 7 (revised 2012)
	Statement of cash flows

	TAS 12 (revised 2012)
	Income taxes

	TAS 17 (revised 2012)
	Leases

	TAS 18 (revised 2012)

TAS 19 (revised 2012)
	Revenue

Employee benefits

	TAS 21 (revised 2012)
	The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

	TAS 24 (revised 2012)
	Related party disclosures

	TAS 28 (revised 2012)
	Investments in associates

	TAS 31 (revised 2012)
	Interest in joint ventures

	TAS 34 (revised 2012)
	Interim financial reporting

	TAS 36 (revised 2012)
	Impairment of assets

	TAS 38 (revised 2012)
	Intangible assets

	TFRS 2 (revised 2012)
	Share-based payment

	TFRS 3 (revised 2012)
	Business combinations

	TFRS 8 (revised 2012)
	Operating segments

	TFRIC 1
	Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities

	TFRIC 4
	Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

	TFRIC 10
	Interim financial reporting and impairment

	TFRIC 13
	Customer loyalty programmes

	TFRIC 17
	Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

	TSIC 27
	Evaluating the substance of transactions in the legal form  of a lease

	TSIC 32
	Intangible assets - Web site costs


TAS 1 (revised 2012) clarifies that conversion features that are at the holder’s discretion do not impact the classification of the liability component of the convertible instrument. TAS 1 also explains that, for each component of equity, an entity may present the breakdown of other comprehensive income either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 7 (revised 2012) clarifies that only expenditures that result in a recognized asset in the statement of financial position are eligible for classification as investing activities. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 12 (revised 2012) amends an exception to the existing principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities on investment property measured at fair value. TAS 12 currently requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale. This amendment therefore adds the rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of an investment property measured at fair value is entirely recovered through sale. As the result of the amendment, TSIC 21 - Income tax - recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets is incorporated in to TAS 12 (revised 2012). The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 17 (revised 2012) deletes the guidance for a lease of land with an indefinite useful life to be classified as an operating lease. The standard has been amended to clarify that when a lease includes both land and buildings, classification as a finance or operating lease is performed separately in accordance with TAS 17’s general principles. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 18 (revised 2012) removes the appendix to TAS 18. This standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statement.

TAS 19 (revised2012) deletes the transition provisions of the current TAS 19. This standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 21 (revised 2012) clarifies the method of recording cumulative amount of the exchange different relating to disposal or partial disposal of a foreign operation. This matter should be adjusted prospectively effective for the period begins on or after 1 January 2011. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations which are effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are relevant to the Group: (Cont’d)
TAS 24 (revised 2012) removes the requirement for government-related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government and other government-related entities. It also clarifies and simplifies the definition of related parties. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 28 (revised 2012) clarifies that when an entity moves from an equity accounting to cost accounting in the separate financial statements, the standard requires this to be adjusted retrospectively. An entity losses significant influence, the remaining interest of investment should be valued at fair value. This matter should be adjusted prospectively effectively for the period begins on or after 1 Jan 2011. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.
TAS 31 (revised 2012) clarifies that when an entity moves from an equity accounting to cost accounting in the separate financial statements, the standard requires this to be adjusted retrospectively. An entity losses of joint control in its interest in joint control, the remaining interest of investment should be valued at fair value. This matter should be adjusted prospectively effectively for the period begins on or after 1 Jan 2011. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 34 (revised 2012) emphasises the existing disclosure principles for significant event and transactions. Additional requirements cover disclosure of changes in fair value measurements (if significant), and the need to update relevant information from the most recent annual report. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 36 (revised 2012) clarifies that goodwill being allocated to cash-generating units shall not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation as defined under TFRS 8 - Operating Segments. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TAS 38 (revised 2012) clarifies about intangible assets acquired in a business combination that is separable. Intangible assets should be recognised separately from goodwill. Complementary assets may only be recognised as a single asset if they have similar useful lives. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRS 2 (revised 2012) expands the scope to cover classification and accounting of both cash-settled and equity-settled share-based payment transactions in group situation. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRS 3 (revised 2012) amends the measurement required for non-controlling interests. The choice of measuring non-controlling interests at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets applies only to instruments that represent present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation. All other component of non-controlling interests is measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is required by TFRS. The application guidance in TFRS 3 (revised 2012) also applies to all share-based payment transactions that are part of a business combination. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRS 8 (revised 2012) clarifies that an entity is required to disclose a measure of segment assets only if the measure is regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker. The Group’s management assessed that the revised standard has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRIC 1 provides guidance on accounting for changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liability that results from changes in estimated timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits required to settle the obligation, or a change in the discount rate. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRIC 4 requires the determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease to be based on the substance of the arrangement. It requires an assessment of whether: (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset); and (b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.

TFRIC 10 prohibits reversal of an impairment losses recognised in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.
3
Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations which are effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are relevant to the Group: (Cont’d)
TFRIC 13 clarifies that where goods or services are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points or free products), the arrangement is a multiple-element arrangement, and the consideration received or receivable from the customer is allocated between the components of the arrangement using fair values. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.
TFRIC 17 provides guidance on accounting for the distributions of non-cash assets to owners acting in their capacity as owners. The interpretation addresses the issues on the dividend payable recognition and measurement and the accounting for any difference between the carrying amount of the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the dividend payable when an entity settles the dividend payable. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.
TSIC 27 provides guidance on evaluating the substance of transactions in the legal form of a lease between the entity and the investor whether a series of transactions is linked and should be accounted for as one transaction and whether the arrangement meets the definition of a lease under TAS 17 “Leases”. This guidance explains examples that individually demonstrate that an arrangement meets the definition of a lease under TAS 17 “Leases”. The accounting shall reflect the substance of the arrangement. The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no impact to the Group’s financial statements.
TSIC 32 provides guidance on the internal expenditure on the development and operation of the entity web site for internal or external access. The entity shall comply with the requirements described in TAS38 “Intangible Assets”. This The Group’s management assessed that the interpretation has no material impact to the Group’s financial statements.
4
New accounting policy

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied or intended to be occupied for use by or in the operations of the Group, is classified as investment property. Investment property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Land and construction held under operating leases is classified and accounted for by the Group as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment property is met.  The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and finance costs. Finance costs are incurred for the purpose of acquiring, constructing or producing a qualifying investment property are capitalised as part of its cost.  Capitalisation of finance costs will cease once the asset is substantially complete, or suspended if the development of the asset is suspended.

After initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation on other investment properties are calculated using the straight line method to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings
20 Years

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

5
Estimates

The preparation of interim financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this interim financial information, the significant judgements made by management in applying the group’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

6
Effects from reclassification and correction of accounting error 
6.1
Effects from reclassifications 
Where necessary, comparative figures for the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and statement of income for the three-month and nine-month periods ended 30 September 2013 have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the current period as follows:
	
	Consolidated

	
	financial information

	
	As previously
	
	After

	
	reported
	Reclassification
	reclassification

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	

	Consolidated statement of financial position 
	
	
	

	   as at 31 December 2013
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Current assets
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents
	226,812,485
	1,132,544
	227,945,029

	Trade and other accounts receivable - related parties (net)
	16,082,705
	(16,082,705)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts receivable - others (net)
	40,836,282
	(40,836,282)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts receivable (net)
	-       
	55,861,242
	55,861,242

	Short-term loans and accrued interest income and 
	
	
	

	   advance payment to others
	42,325,479
	(42,325,479)
	-       

	Short-term loans to other company
	-       
	40,000,000
	40,000,000

	Short-term music and program rights (net)
	1,125,000
	129,600
	1,254,600

	Other current assets (net)
	6,460,198
	(6,460,198)
	-       

	Current portion of prepaid assets rental
	-       
	3,880,926
	3,880,926

	
	
	
	

	Non-current assets
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Restricted deposits at financial institutions
	33,870,304
	(1,132,544)
	32,737,760

	Investment in subsidiaries and associated company (net)
	101,252,272
	(101,252,272)
	-       

	Investments in associates (net)
	-       
	96,766,175
	96,766,175

	Investments in subsidiaries (net)
	-       
	-       
	-       

	Property, plant and equipments (net)
	91,260,197
	20,436,350
	111,696,547

	Prepaid rental expenses
	21,051,350
	(21,051,350)
	-       

	Prepaid assets rental 
	-       
	300,000
	300,000

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	14,389,768
	4,798,389
	19,188,157

	
	
	
	

	Current liabilities
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Trade and other accounts payable - others
	70,361,596
	(70,361,596)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts payable
	-       
	71,455,220
	71,455,220

	Short-term loans from other persons
	512,293
	(512,293)
	-       

	Other current liabilities
	9,708,742
	(9,708,742)
	-       

	Value added tax
	-       
	4,245,980
	4,245,980

	Withholding tax payable
	-       
	1,761,706
	1,761,706

	
	
	
	

	Non-current liabilities
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax liabilities (net)
	5,986,771
	(4,612,050)
	1,374,721

	
	
	
	

	Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income 
	
	
	

	   for the three-month period end 30 September 2013
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues from digital channel service management
	52,625,333
	(4,479,499)
	48,145,834

	Revenues from television media
	12,087,339
	4,479,499
	16,566,838

	Other income
	491,354
	73,340
	564,694

	
	
	
	

	Expenses
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Cost of sales and services
	(41,708,595)
	41,708,595
	-       

	Selling expenses
	(1,535,100)
	1,535,100
	-       

	Cost of services
	-       
	(41,708,595)
	(41,708,595)

	Servicing expenses
	-       
	(2,608,573)
	(2,608,573)

	Administrative expenses 
	(19,984,068)
	1,073,473
	(18,910,595)

	Doubtful debts
	-       
	(2,453,786)
	(2,453,786)

	Other expenses
	(2,433,534)
	2,433,534
	-       

	Other gains (losses)
	
	
	

	   - Net gain (loss) of disposal of assets
	-       
	763
	763

	   - Net gain (loss) on exchange rate
	-       
	(53,850)
	(53,850)
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Effect from change in presentation and correction of accounting error (Cont’d)

6.1
Reclassifications and errors (Cont’d)
Where necessary, comparative figures for the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and statement of income for the three-month and nine-month periods ended 30 September 2013 have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the current period as follows: (Cont’d)
	
	Consolidated

	
	financial information

	
	As previously
	
	After

	
	reported
	Reclassification
	reclassification

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	

	Statement of comprehensive Income 
	
	
	

	   for the nine-month period end 30 September 2013
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues from digital channel service management
	148,158,789
	(10,450,177)
	137,708,612

	Revenues from television media
	32,389,919
	10,450,019
	42,839,938

	Other income
	5,035,444
	29,212
	5,064,656

	
	
	
	

	Expenses
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Cost of sales and services
	(120,914,805)
	120,914,806
	-       

	Selling expenses
	(3,247,013)
	3,247,013
	-       

	Cost of services
	-       
	(120,914,806)
	(120,914,806)

	Servicing expenses
	-       
	(5,960,806)
	(5,960,806)

	Administrative expenses 
	(60,347,517)
	2,444,232
	(57,903,285)

	Doubtful debts
	-       
	(1,933,392)
	(1,933,392)

	Other expenses
	(2,301,570)
	2,301,570
	-       

	Other gains (losses)
	
	
	

	   - Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets
	-       
	26,393
	26,393

	   - Net gain (loss) on exchange rate
	-       
	(154,065)
	(154,065)


	
	Company

	
	financial information

	
	As previously
	
	After

	
	reported
	Reclassification
	reclassification

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	

	Company statement of financial position 
	
	
	

	   31 December 2013
	
	
	

	Current assets
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Trade and other accounts receivable - related parties (net)
	38,379,321
	(38,379,321)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts receivable - others (net)
	7,516,579
	(7,516,579)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts receivable (net)
	-       
	47,559,671
	47,559,671

	Short-term loans and accrued interest income
	
	
	

	   - related parties (net)
	5,222,554
	(5,222,554)
	-       

	Short-term loans to related companies (net)
	-       
	4,500,000
	4,500,000

	Short-term loans and accrued interest income and 
	
	
	

	   advanced payment to others
	40,325,479
	(40,325,479)
	-       

	Short-term loans to other company
	-       
	40,000,000
	40,000,000

	Other current assets (net)
	643,999
	(643,999)
	-       

	Current portion of prepaid assets rental
	-       
	615,000
	615,000

	
	
	
	

	Non-current assets
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Investment in subsidiaries and associated company (net)
	166,087,983
	(166,087,983)
	-       

	Investment in associates (net)
	-       
	121,088,283
	121,088,283

	Investment in subsidiaries (net)
	-       
	44,999,700
	44,999,700

	Property, plant and equipments (net)
	6,285,957
	20,436,350
	26,722,307

	Prepaid rental expenses
	21,051,350
	(21,051,350)
	-       

	
	
	
	

	Current liabilities
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Trade and other accounts payable - others
	13,562,994
	(13,562,994)
	-       

	Trade and other accounts payable
	-       
	14,566,787
	14,566,787

	Short-term loans from other persons
	512,293
	(512,293)
	-       

	Other current liabilities
	4,941,727
	(4,941,727)
	-       

	Value added tax
	-       
	3,409,845
	3,409,845

	Withholding tax payable
	-       
	397,121
	397,121
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Effect from change in presentation and correction of accounting error (Cont’d)

6.1
Reclassifications and errors (Cont’d)
Where necessary, comparative figures for the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and statement of income for the three-month and nine-month periods ended 30 September 2013 have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the current period as follows: (Cont’d)
	
	Company

	
	financial information

	
	As previously
	
	After

	
	reported
	Reclassification
	reclassification

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	

	Statement of comprehensive income 
	
	
	

	   for the three-month period end 30 September 2013
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues from management service
	900,000
	(900,000)
	-       

	Reversal in doubtful debts
	5,258,882
	(5,258,882)
	-       

	Other income
	515,117
	900,000
	1,415,117

	
	
	
	

	Expenses
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Cost of sales and services
	(22,533,310)
	22,533,310
	-       

	Selling expenses
	(791,680)
	791,680
	-       

	Cost of services
	-       
	(22,533,309)
	(22,533,309)

	Servicing expenses
	-       
	(791,680)
	(791,680)

	Doubtful debts
	-       
	5,258,882
	5,258,882

	
	
	
	

	Statement of comprehensive income 
	
	
	

	   for the nine-month period end 30 September 2013
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Revenues from management service
	2,700,000
	(2,700,000)
	-       

	Reversal in doubtful debts
	9,375,944
	(9,375,944)
	-       

	Other income
	1,759,526
	2,700,000
	4,459,526

	
	
	
	

	Expenses
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Cost of sales and services
	(65,182,830)
	65,182,830
	-       

	Selling expenses
	(858,435)
	858,435
	-       

	Cost of services
	-       
	(65,182,830)
	(65,182,830)

	Servicing expenses
	-       
	(858,435)
	(858,435)

	Doubtful debts
	-       
	9,375,944
	9,375,944
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Effect from change in presentation and correction of accounting error (Cont’d)

6.2
Correction of accounting errors
During the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014, the Company corrected accounting errors related to investments in associates and deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 December 2013.  The Company has corrected by applying retrospective adjustments. The effects of correction of accounting errors to the financial statements are as follows:

	
	Consolidated financial information

	
	
	
	
	After

	
	
	Increase
	
	adjustment

	
	As previously
	(decrease)
	After
	and

	
	reported
	of errors
	Reclassification
	reclassification

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Consolidated statement of financial
	
	
	
	

	   position as at 31 December 2013
	
	
	
	

	Asset
	
	
	
	

	Investments in associates (net)
	101,252,272
	(4,486,097)
	-       
	96,766,175

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	14,389,768
	9,410,439
	(4,612,050)
	19,188,157

	
	
	
	
	

	Shareholders’ equity 
	
	
	
	

	Deficits 
	(87,280,895)
	4,924,342
	-       
	(82,356,553)

	
	
	
	
	

	Consolidated statement of comprehensive
	
	
	
	

	   income for the three-month
	
	
	
	

	   period end 30 September 2013
	
	
	
	

	Share of loss from investments
	
	
	
	

	   in associates
	(2,406,409)
	68,059
	-       
	(2,338,350)

	Income tax
	(863,404)
	1,193,670
	-       
	330,266

	Basic earnings per share
	
0.003
	
0.001
	-       
	
0.004

	
	
	
	
	

	Statement of comprehensive income 
	
	
	
	

	   for the nine-month period end 
	
	
	
	

	   30 September 2013
	
	
	
	

	Share of loss from investments
	
	
	
	

	   in associates
	(2,406,409)
	68,059
	-       
	(2,338,350)

	Income tax
	(2,445,226)
	1,193,670
	-       
	(1,251,556)

	Basic earnings per share
	
0.011
	
0.001
	-       
	
0.012
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Trade and other accounts receivable (net)

	
	Consolidated
financial information
	Company
financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Trade accounts receivable - others
	31,822,153
	103,386,755
	9,754,700
	54,382,063

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(6,041,526)
	(76,332,522)
	(2,000,000)
	(51,727,563)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	25,780,627
	27,054,233
	7,754,700
	2,654,500

	
	
	
	
	

	Trade accounts receivable
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	-       
	263,587,402
	62,419,462
	316,895,749

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(263,587,402)
	(40,066,850)
	(297,124,253)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	22,352,612
	19,771,496

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued income - others
	5,204,616
	10,512,214
	1,696,260
	5,003,510

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(1,956,260)
	(5,465,154)
	(1,696,260)
	(1,696,260)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	3,248,356
	5,047,060
	-       
	3,307,250

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued income
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	37,450
	10,238,407
	2,780,930
	12,828,894

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(10,232,878)
	(144,351)
	(10,298,245)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	37,450
	5,529
	2,636,579
	2,530,649

	
	
	
	
	

	Other accounts receivable - others
	603,888
	17,431,870
	414,761
	16,826,222

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(189,117)
	(16,743,663)
	-       
	(16,743,665)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	485,771
	688,207
	414,761
	82,557

	
	
	
	
	

	Advance payment - others
	2,344,686
	2,722,124
	167,106
	261,486

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(2,000,000)
	(314,159)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	344,686
	2,407,965
	167,106
	261,486

	
	
	
	
	

	Advance payment
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	16,183,236
	16,111,542
	16,212,331
	16,087,696

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(16,077,176)
	(34,366)
	(16,077,176)
	(10,520)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	106,060
	16,077,176
	135,155
	16,077,176

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued interest income - others
	806,795
	325,479
	806,795
	325,479

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(806,795)
	-       
	(806,795)
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	325,479
	-       
	325,479

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued interest income
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	541,849
	31,303,566
	3,574,973
	33,559,316

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(31,303,566)
	(1,573,585)
	(32,836,762)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	541,849
	-       
	2,001,388
	722,554

	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid expenses - others
	2,688,130
	2,755,593
	669,113
	1,211,524

	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid expenses
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	-       
	11,395,200
	-       
	-       

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(11,359,200)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued dividend income 
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 12)
	-       
	-       
	20,000,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Posted date cheques - other
	165,000
	1,500,000
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	33,326,929
	55,861,242
	56,131,414
	46,944,671
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Trade and other accounts receivable (net) (Cont’d)

Trade accounts receivable classified by aging are as follows: 

	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company

financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Others
	
	
	
	

	Current
	12,486,515
	12,656,556
	652,700
	-       

	Overdue
	
	
	
	

	   Less than 3 months
	9,579,307
	10,692,038
	5,196,500
	1,658,500

	   3 - 6 months
	1,991,306
	1,209,100
	909,500
	-       

	   6 - 12 months
	1,514,080
	856,000
	-       
	856,000

	   More than 12 months
	6,250,945
	77,973,061
	2,996,000
	51,867,563

	
	
	
	
	

	
	31,822,153
	103,386,755
	9,754,700
	54,382,063


	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company

financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Related company
	
	
	
	

	Current
	-       
	-       
	1,646,817
	1,980,277

	Overdue
	
	
	
	

	   Less than 3 months
	-       
	-       
	5,291,709
	3,913,080

	   3 - 6 months
	-       
	-       
	3,229,039
	8,553,464

	   6 - 12 months
	-       
	-       
	14,098,857
	16,767,762

	   More than 12 months
	-       
	263,587,402
	38,153,040
	285,681,166

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	263,587,402
	62,419,462
	316,895,749
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Short-term loans to other company
The movements of short-term loans to other company for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise:
	
	
Consolidated


financial
	
Company


financial

	
	
information
	
information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	

	Beginning balance as at 1 January 2014 
	40,000,000
	40,000,000

	Repayment during the period 
	(40,000,000)
	(40,000,000)

	
	
	

	Ending balance as at 30 September 2014
	-       
	-       


AS at 10 October 2013, the Company has granted the short-term loans denominated in Thai Baht of Baht 60 million to V Billboard Company Limited (“VBB”) to use in constructing LED billboard.  The loan is recurred by 4 billboards of VBB.  The loan bears interest at the rate of 3.00% per annum and is due for repayable at calls as stipulated on each promissory notes on each loan draw down date.  However, the Company has fully received payment of the loans from VBB on 30 June 2014.

9
Deferred film production costs (net)
	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company

financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Deferred film production cost
	10,567,157
	10,567,157
	10,567,157
	10,567,157

	Less  allowance for impairment
	(10,567,157)
	(10,567,157)
	(10,567,157)
	(10,567,157)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	-       
	-       
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Restricted deposits at financial institutions
As at 30 September 2014, the Company and subsidiaries held restricted deposits at financial in situations representing 
1 year fixed deposits with interest rate of between 0.50% per annum and 2.75% per annum (31 December 2013 : 0.50% per annum and 2.75% per annum).  The fixed deposits are used as collateral against letter of guarantee for rental (Note 35.2) and credit facilities for an associate (Note 11).
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Investments in associated companies (net)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	
	
	Percentage of
	Paid-up share capital
	financial information
	Financial information

	
	
	
	shareholding
	(ordinary shares)
	Equity
	Cost method

	
	
	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
(Restated)
	
	

	
	
	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	Companies name
	Nature of business
	Incorporated in
	%
	%
	Million Baht
	Million Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Box Office Entertainment
	Film importer for sale
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   Company Limited
	and film producer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	for sale
	Thailand
	
40.00
	
40.00
	
100.00
	
100.00
	19,500,489
	19,500,489
	19,500,489
	19,500,489

	Strega Public Company Limited
	Construction of 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   (Former “Straga Company 
	non-residential
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	    Limited)
	buildings
	Thailand
	
40.00
	
40.00
	
150.00
	
55.00
	153,473,319
	96,766,175
	159,088,283
	121,088,283

	Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	Aesthetic business
	Thailand
	
30.00
	      -
	
5.00
	-       
	16,197,432
	-       
	15,700,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	189,171,240
	116,266,664
	194,288,772
	140,588,772

	Less  Allowance for decrease in
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	             value of investments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(19,500,489)
	(19,500,489)
	(19,500,489)
	(19,500,489)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	169,670,751
	96,766,175
	174,788,283
	121,088,283
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Investments in associates (net) (Cont’d)
The net movement of investments in associates for nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise: 
	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company

financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
	
(Restated)
	
	

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Opening net book amount
	96,766,175
	-       
	121,088,283
	-       

	Investment increase during the period
	53,700,000
	117,458,284
	53,700,000
	121,088,283

	Share of profit (loss) for the period
	27,204,576
	(692,109)
	-       
	-       

	Dividend received for the period
	(8,000,000)
	(20,000,000)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Ending net book amount
	169,670,751
	96,766,175
	174,788,283
	121,088,283


As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Company has entered to guarantee credit facilities to Strega Public Company Limited an associate, as follows:

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	

	
	2014
	2013
	

	
	Credit line
	Credit line
	

	Credit facility
	(Million Baht)
	(Million Baht)
	Guarantee by

	
	
	
	

	Long-term loans
	
55.50
	
55.50
	As at 30 September 2014, guarantee by the Company and associated company’s assets.
As at 31 December 2013, guarantee by associated company’s assets and directors.  The Company has made a request to change as guarantor by the Company

	
	
	
	

	Letter of guarantee
	
68.00
	
68.00
	Guarantee by associated company’s assets, and by the Company and by fixed deposit of the Company amounting to Baht 20.0 million (Note 10).

	
	
	
	

	Liabilities under 
	
	
	

	   financial lease
	
	
	

	   agreement
	
171.95
	
42.78
	Guarantee by the Company

	
	
	
	

	Bank Overdraft
	
20.00
	
20.00
	Guarantee by associated company’s assets, and by the Company and by fixed deposit of the Company amounting to Baht 9.0 million (Note 10).

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Total
	
315.45
	
186.28
	


The Company did not have a policy to charge guarantee fee from an associate.
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Investments in associates (net) (Cont’d)
Strega Public Company Limited (formerly “ Strega Company Limited”)
· On 26 March 2014, the board of directors approved to additinally invest in Strega Company Limited by buying additional issued 360,000 shares with a par value of Baht 100 each totalling Baht 36,000,000.  This is to maintain the Company’s 40% interest in Strega Co., Ltd.  The Company purchased in share capital finished in May 2014.

· Declaration on dividend payment of Strega Company Limited an associate company.
At the Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Strega Company Limited held on 30 April 2014, the shareholders approved the payment of dividend in respect of the retained earning at the rate of Baht 33.33 per share totalling Baht 8 million.  The Company has received the dividend on 6 May 2014.

· Plan to list on Market for Alternative Investment of Strega Public Company Limited 
At the Board of Directors meeting of Strega Company Limited (“Strega”) on 7 May 2014, resolved that Strega, an associate which the Company invests 40.00 percent of the Strega’s registered capital, convert to be public company limited and go listed on the Market for Alternative Investment (MAI) for Initial Public Offering. At the Strega’s Annual General Shareholders Meeting of 2013 on 30 April 2014, the shareholders have a resolution to increase the registered capital to Baht 150.00 million from Baht 60.00 million by issuing additional 900,000 ordinary share at a par value of Baht 100 each.

At Strega’s extraordinary shareholders’ meeting which was held on 5 June 2014, the shareholders anonymously approved

-
The change of a par value from Baht 100 each to Baht 0.25 each by splitting the existing 1,500,000 ordinary shares into 600,000,000 ordinary shares. 

-
The increase in registered share capital in the amount of Baht 50.00 million by issuing additional 200,000,000 ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 0.25 each.  The capital increase of Strega will reduce the Company’s interest in Strega, which falls into the definition of a disposal of assets which must be reported by a listed company in accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. Thor Chor 20/2551, dated 31 August 2008, and as amended, and the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Board Re: Disclosure of information and required practice for listed companies relating to the acquisition, disposal of assets 2004, dated 29 October 2004.  The Company already reported to SET on 7 May 2014.
-
The conversion of the Company status from a private entity to a public company limited

Strega subsequently registered change of a par value, capital increase, and conversion of the company to public company limited with the Ministry of Commerce on 11 June 2014.

Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
· Share acquisition in Skenique Group Co., Ltd. 

The Board of Directors’ Meeting on 23 April 2014, has resolved to approve the Company to purchase 3,000 ordinary shares at the price of Baht 4,833.33 each or 30 percent of registered and paid-up capital of Skenique Group Co., Ltd. which is a company registered in Thailand from existing shareholders with overall acquisition value of Baht 14,500,000.

The Company has entered into Skenique share purchase agreement on 16 May 2014.  As at 30 September 2014, the Company’s management is assessing fair value of the aforementioned shares.  

On 14 August 2014, the Board of Directors approved to additionally invest in Skenique Group Co., Ltd. by buying additionally issued 12,000 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 100 each totalling Baht 1,200,000. This is to maintain the Company’s 30% interest in Skenique Group Co., Ltd.  Subsequently, Skenique Group Co., Ltd. registered share capital increased on 20 August 2014.
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Investments in subsidiaries (net)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Company

	
	
	
	Percentage of
	Paid-up share capital
	financial information

	
	
	
	shareholding
	(ordinary shares)
	Cost method

	
	
	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited

	
	
	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	Companies name
	Nature of business
	Incorporated in
	%
	%
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Direct Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Digital Right Pictures PCL*
	Selling video taps and video compact disc 
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
576.00
	
576.00
	494,130,000
	494,130,000

	In and On Studio Co., Ltd.*
	Events organizer 
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
20.00
	
20.00
	19,998,000
	19,998,000

	Live Radio Co., Ltd.*
	Implement on radio 
	Thailand
	
97.50
	
97.50
	
100.00
	
100.00
	97,500,000
	97,500,000

	Live TV Co., Ltd.
	Television program producer via cable T.V. provider
	Thailand
	
90.10
	
90.10
	
154.00
	
154.00
	138,750,000
	138,750,000

	Live Media Group PCL
	Producer and Rental services for billboard space 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	   and digital media
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
90.00
	
45.00
	200,283,204
	145,283,204

	Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	Television program producer via cable T.V. provider
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
1.00
	
1.00
	999,700
	999,700

	POP TV Co., Ltd.
	Television program producer via cable T.V. provider
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
1.00
	
1.00
	999,700
	999,700

	LSB Services Co., Ltd.
	Television streaming and studio rental services
	Thailand
	
99.99
	
99.99
	
5.00
	
5.00
	4,999,700
	4,999,700

	Live Estate Co., Ltd.
	Construction of non-residential buildings
	Thailand
	
100.00
	-     
	
75.00
	-     
	75,000,000
	-        

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	   
	
	
	
	
	
	1,032,660,304
	902,660,304

	Less  Allowance for decrease
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	            in on value of investments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(857,660,604)
	(857,660,604)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	174,999,700
	44,999,700

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Indirect Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	LMG Estate Co., Ltd.
	Construction of billboard
	Thailand
	
100.00
	-     
	
20.00
	-     
	20,000,000
	-        


* Under liquidation process
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Investments in subsidiaries (net) (Cont’d)
The movement of investment in subsidiaries for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 as follows:

	
	
	Company
financial
information

	
	
	Unaudited

	
	
	
30 September

	
	
	2014

	
	
	Baht

	
	
	

	Opening net book amount 
	
	44,999,700

	Cash paid for Investment in Live Estate Co., Ltd.
	
	75,000,000

	Investment in Live Media Group PCL
	
	55,000,000

	
	
	

	Ending net book amount
	
	174,999,700


As at 25 February 2014, the Company incorporated “Live Estate Co., Ltd.” to operate real estate development and management business.  The Company holds 1,500,000 ordinary shares and paid up Baht 50 per share totalling Baht 75,000,000 equivalent to 100% of interest in it.

As at 28 February 2014, Live Media Group Public Company Limited, which is subsidiary, incorporated “LMG Estate Co., Ltd.” to operate construction of billboard. Live Media Group Public Company Limited. holds 200,000 ordinary share and paid up Baht 100 per share totalling Baht 20,000,000 equivalent to 100% of interest in it.

On 24 September 2014, the Board of Directors approved to additionally invest in Live Media Group Public Company Limited by buying additionally issued 550,000 ordinary shared with par value of Baht 100 each totalling Baht 55,000,000. This is to maintain the Company’s 99.99% interest in Live Media Group Public Company Limited.  Subsequently, Live Media Group Public Company Limited registered share capital increased on 29 September 2014.

Declaration on dividend payment of Live Media Group Public Company Limited.

· On 25 September 2014, the ordinary Shareholders Meeting of Live Media Group Public Company Limited had approved the payment of dividend from the unappropriated retained earnings at Baht 44.4444 per ordinary share totalling Baht 20 million.  The Company has received the dividend on 10 October 2014.
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Investment in other company (net)
As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the components of investment in other company (net)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Company

	
	
	
	Percentage of
	Paid-up share capital
	financial information

	
	
	
	shareholding
	(ordinary shares)
	Cost method

	
	
	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited

	
	
	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	Companies name
	Nature of business
	Incorporated in
	%
	%
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	UMG Entertainment Co., Ltd.
	Cinema hall business
	Thailand
	
15.00
	
15.00
	
100.00
	
100.00
	15,000,000
	15,000,000

	Less  Allowance for decrease in on value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	            of investments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(15,000,000)
	(15,000,000)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	-      
	-      
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Advance payment for purchase of land 

As at 30 September 2014, advance payment for purchase of land represents advance payment for purchase of land of a subsidiary for rending the rental business in the future.  As at 30 September 2014, the subsidiary’s management is in progress of transferring the ownership of the land.
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Investment property (net) 

The net movements of investment property (net) for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise:
	
	For the nine-month period

	
	ended 30 September 2014

	
	Consolidated

financial
information
	Company
financial
information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	

	Cost 
	-       
	-       

	Less
Accumulated depreciation
	-       
	-       

	
	
	

	Opening net book value
	-       
	-       

	Additions
	10,000,000
	-       

	Depreciation charge
	(24,658)
	-       

	
	
	

	Ending net book value
	9,975,342
	-       

	
	
	

	Cost
	10,000,000
	-       

	Less
Accumulated depreciation
	(24,658)
	-       

	
	
	

	Ending net book value
	9,975,342
	-       
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Property, plant and equipment (net)

The net movements of property, plant and equipment for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise:
	
	For the nine-month period

	
	ended 30 September 2014

	
	Consolidated

financial
information
	Company
financial
information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	

	Cost 
	266,453,758
	28,578,880

	Less
Accumulated depreciation
	(154,757,211)
	(1,856,573)

	
	
	

	Opening net book value
	111,696,547
	26,722,307

	Additions 
	193,587,877
	65,720,707

	Transferred from rights of exploitation (Note 19)
	1,547,055
	-       

	Disposal
- cost
	(779,159)
	-       

	
- accumulated depreciation
	742,750
	-       

	Write off
- cost
	(22,487,941)
	-       

	
- accumulated depreciation
	17,546,007
	-       

	Depreciation charge
	(16,725,354)
	(1,662,400)

	
	
	

	Ending net book value 
	285,127,782
	90,780,614

	
	
	

	Cost or revalued amount
	438,321,590
	94,299,587

	Less
Accumulated depreciation
	(153,193,808)
	(3,518,973)

	
	
	

	Ending net book value 
	285,127,782
	90,780,614
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Intangible assets (net)

Intangible assets represent films and program rights and computer softwares.  The movement of intangible assets for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise:
	
	For the nine-month period

	
	ended 30 September 2014

	
	Consolidated

financial
information
	Company
financial
information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	

	Cost 
	55,047,386
	52,578,917

	Less
Accumulated amortisation
	(41,269,093)
	(39,447,378)

	
Allowance for impairment 
	(7,585,700)
	(7,585,700)

	
	
	

	Opening net book value
	6,192,593
	5,545,839

	Additions
	648,459
	71,155

	Write-off during the period
	(60,000)
	(60,000)

	Amortisation charge 
	(2,710,890)
	(1,842,637)

	
	
	

	Ending net book value 
	4,070,162
	3,714,357

	
	
	

	Cost 
	55,635,845
	52,590,072

	Less
Accumulated amortisation
	(43,979,983)
	(41,290,015)

	
Allowance for impairment 
	(7,585,700)
	(7,585,700)

	
	
	

	Ending net book value 
	4,070,162
	3,714,357


Intangible assets as at 30 September 2014 comprise the follows:

	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company
financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term film and music rights (net)
	-       
	1,254,600
	-       
	1,125,000

	Computer softwares (net)
	4,070,162
	4,937,993
	3,714,357
	4,420,839

	
	
	
	
	

	
	4,070,162
	6,192,593
	3,714,357
	5,545,839
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Goodwill (net) 

	
	Consolidated

financialinformation
	Company
financialinformation

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Goodwill
	7,108,183
	7,108,183
	-       
	-       

	Less
Allowance impairment
	(7,108,183)
	(7,108,183)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	-       
	-       
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Rights of exploitation (net)
During July and August 2013, a subsidiary entered into agreements with V Billboard Company Limited (VBB) for the right of exploitation to use 4 billboards which are belong to V Billboard Company Limited (VBB). According to the agreements, the subsidiary had to pay Baht 21.22 million in acquiring such right for a period of 3-5 years from VBB. The payment are to be made in various installments as stipulated in each agreements. The last installment is on 1 September 2015. Outstanding commitments are presented in Note 34.4. The billboards are located on the land as mentioned in the contracts which this company has entered into the land rental agreement of each land owners. The subsidiary also paid the additional of Baht 1.68 million for equipments which are related with the billboards, installed by the subsidiary and recorded as part of this accounts. However, the subsidiary has already terminated such rights of exploitation agreements with VBB on 22 June 2014, effective 30 June 2014. The subsidiary received the payment back from contract cancellation in amount of Baht 13.32 million on 27 June 2014 and recognised loss from termination in amount of Baht 189,115. Subsequently, another subsidiary has entered into agreement to purchase the 4 billboards from VBB in amount of Baht 18.46 million, using replacement cost method assessed by a construction company who experts in construction of billboards.
The movements rights of exploitation for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 and for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprises the following:

	
	Consolidated

financial information
	Company
financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	22,900,054
	-       
	-      
	-      

	Less  Accumutated amortisation
	(2,016,370)
	-       
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	Opening net book value
	20,883,684
	-       
	-      
	-      

	Addition
	5,202,577
	22,900,054
	-      
	-      

	Amortisation charge
	(2,629,646)
	(2,016,370)
	-      
	-      

	Transferred to property, plant and
	
	
	
	

	   equipment (Note 16)
	
	
	
	

	      - Cost 
	(1,735,200)
	-       
	-      
	-      

	      - Accumulated amortisation 
	188,145
	-       
	-      
	-      

	Reversal transaction from contract 
	
	
	
	

	   termination with VBB
	
	
	
	

	      - Cost 
	(21,324,854)
	-       
	-      
	-      

	      - Accumulated amortisation 
	4,319,739
	-       
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	Ending net book value
	4,904,445
	20,883,684
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	5,042,577
	22,900,054
	-      
	-      

	Less  Accumutated amortisation
	(138,132)
	(2,016,370)
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	Ending net book value
	4,904,445
	20,883,684
	-      
	-      
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Prepaid assets rental (net)

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid assets rental
	
	
	
	

	   - related companies (Note 32 b))
	1,297,500
	615,000
	1,297,500
	615,000

	   - other companies
	7,635,588
	3,565,962
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	
	8,933,088
	4,180,962
	1,297,500
	615,000

	Less  Current portion 
	(4,763,599)
	(3,880,962)
	(1,297,500)
	(615,000)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	4,169,489
	300,000
	-      
	-      


21
Deferred tax (net) 

The movement of deferred taxes for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 and for the year ended 
31 December 2013 comprises the following:

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
	
(Restated)
	
	

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Opening balance
	17,813,436
	3,160,307
	14,323,735
	-       

	Increase (decrease) to the statement of
	
	
	
	

	   comprehensive income
	(3,401,895)
	14,653,129
	113,067
	14,323,735

	
	
	
	
	

	Closing balance
	14,411,541
	17,813,436
	14,436,802
	14,323,735


Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities presented by net tax taxable entities in the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 comprises the following:

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
	
(Restated)
	
	

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	15,559,795
	19,188,157
	14,436,802
	14,323,735

	Deferred tax liabilities (net)
	(1,148,254)
	(1,374,721)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	14,411,541
	17,813,436
	14,436,802
	14,323,735


	
	Consolidated financial information

	
	(Unaudited)

	
	
	Increase
	

	
	
	(decrease)
	

	
	
	to the
	

	
	
(Restated)
	statement of
	

	
	
1 January
	comprehensive
	
30 September

	
	2014
	income
	2014

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets:
	
	
	

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	21,152
	196,671
	217,823

	Employee benefit obligations
	313,890
	120,722
	434,612

	Different in value of investments in associate between 
	
	
	

	   accounting and tax
	4,864,422
	(3,840,916)
	1,023,506

	Accumulated loss 
	14,054,726
	-       
	14,054,726

	
	
	
	

	   Total deferred tax assets
	19,254,190
	(3,523,523)
	15,730,667

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax liabilities:
	
	
	

	Different depreciation charge between accounting and tax
	(1,440,754)
	121,628
	(1,319,126)

	
	
	
	

	   Total deferred tax liabilities
	(1,440,754)
	121,628
	(1,319,126)

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	17,813,436
	(3,401,895)
	14,411,541


21
Deferred tax (net) (Cont’d)
The movement of deferred taxes for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 and for the year ended 
31 December 2013 comprises of the following: (Cont’d)
	
	Consolidated financial information (Audited)

	
	
	Increase
	

	
	
	(decrease)
	

	
	
	to the
	

	
	
	statement of
	
(Restated)

	
	
1 January
	comprehensive
	
31 December

	
	2013
	income
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	Deferred tax assets:
	
	
	

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	3,128,222
	(3,107,070)
	21,152

	Employee benefit obligations
	29,710
	284,180
	313,890

	Different depreciation charge between accounting and tax
	2,375
	(2,375)
	-       

	Different in value of investments in associate between 
	
	
	

	   accounting and tax
	-       
	4,864,422
	4,864,422

	Accumulated loss 
	-       
	14,054,726
	14,054,726

	
	
	
	

	Total deferred tax assets
	3,160,307
	16,093,883
	19,254,190

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax liabilities:
	
	
	

	Different in value of investments in associate between 
	
	
	

	   accounting and tax
	-       
	(1,440,754)
	(1,440,754)

	
	
	
	

	Total deferred tax liabilities
	-       
	(1,440,754)
	(1,440,754)

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	3,160,307
	14,653,129
	17,813,436


	
	Company financial information (Unaudited)

	
	
	Increase
	

	
	
	(decrease)
	

	
	
	to the
	

	
	
	statement of
	

	
	
1 January
	comprehensive
	
30 September

	
	2014
	income
	2014

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	Deferred tax assets:
	
	
	

	Employee benefit obligations
	269,009
	113,067
	382,076

	Accumulated loss 
	14,054,726
	-       
	14,054,726

	
	
	
	

	Total deferred tax assets
	14,323,735
	113,067
	14,436,802

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax liabilities:
	-       
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets (net)
	14,323,735
	113,067
	14,436,802


	
	Company financial information (Audited)

	
	
	Increase
	

	
	
	(decrease)
	

	
	
	to the
	

	
	
	statement of
	

	
	
1 January
	comprehensive
	
31 December

	
	2013
	income
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	Deferred tax assets:
	
	
	

	Employee benefit obligations
	-       
	269,009
	269,009

	Accumulated loss
	-       
	14,054,726
	14,054,726

	
	
	
	

	Total deferred tax assets
	-       
	14,323,735
	14,323,735

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax liabilities:
	-       
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	

	Deferred tax assets (net) 
	-       
	14,323,735
	14,323,735
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Other non-current asset (net)
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Refundable deposits 
	2,445,902
	6,802,943
	231,197
	4,599,383

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts 
	-       
	(4,581,383)
	-       
	(4,581,383)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	2,445,902
	2,221,560
	231,197
	18,000

	Guarantees
	3,808,980
	2,997,480
	2,033,181
	1,926,681

	
	
	
	
	

	
	6,254,882
	5,219,040
	2,264,378
	1,944,681
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Trade and other accounts payable 
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Trade accounts payable - other companies
	90,344,572
	49,311,303
	27,227,718
	13,562,994

	Other accounts payable - other companies
	-       
	512,293
	-       
	512,293

	Share capital payable - related companies  
	-       
	-       
	10,000,000
	-       

	   (Note 32 b)) 
	
	
	
	

	Accrued expenses for right of exploitation
	-       
	6,251,600
	-       
	-       

	Accrued expenses
	
	
	
	

	   - Rights
	5,934,188
	13,799,095
	-       
	-       

	   - Dividend payable
	937,625
	937,625
	-       
	-       

	   - Other accrued expenses
	567,187
	169,988
	186,111
	84,184

	Retentions payable
	3,018,066
	473,316
	2,952,066
	407,316

	
	
	
	
	

	
	100,801,638
	71,455,220
	40,359,895
	14,566,787


24
Liabilities under financial lease agreements (net)
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Liabilities under financial lease agreements
	3,318,464
	4,564,991
	1,827,114
	2,394,771

	Less  Future finance changes on finance lease
	(213,741)
	(410,543)
	(123,683)
	(219,568)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	3,104,723
	4,154,448
	1,703,431
	2,175,203

	Less  Current portion
	(1,490,826)
	(1,412,495)
	(665,886)
	(634,280)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	1,613,897
	2,741,953
	1,037,545
	1,540,923


Payments to be made for financial lease agreements are as follows:
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Within 1 year
	1,662,036
	1,662,036
	756,876
	756,876

	Later than 1 year but not later than 3 years
	1,656,428
	2,902,955
	1,070,238
	1,637,895

	
	
	
	
	

	
	3,318,464
	4,564,991
	1,827,114
	2,394,771
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Liabilities under hire purchase agreement (net)
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Liabilities under hire purchase agreement
	187,164
	413,568
	-      
	-      

	Less  Future finance charges on hire purchase
	(344)
	(4,434)
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	
	186,820
	409,134
	-      
	-      

	Less  Current portion
	(186,820)
	(409,134)
	-      
	-      

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	-      
	-      


Payments to be made for hire purchase agreement are as follows:
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Within 1 year
	187,164
	413,568
	-      
	-      


26
Value added tax
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Undue output tax 
	(6,524,232)
	(7,194,450)
	(4,910,146)
	(4,053,106)

	Undue input tax 
	7,723,911
	5,583,406
	429,666
	241,759

	Value added tax 
	3,313,783
	393,199
	3,619,963
	401,502

	
	
	
	
	

	
	4,513,462
	(1,217,845)
	(860,517)
	(3,409,845)


Value added tax present by net tax taxable entities in the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 comprises the following:
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Value added tax (assets)
	5,723,332
	3,028,135
	-       
	-       

	Value added tax (liabilities)
	(1,209,870)
	(4,245,980)
	(860,517)
	(3,409,845)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	4,513,462
	(1,217,845)
	(860,517)
	(3,409,845)
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Employee benefit obligations 

The movement of employee benefits obligations for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 comprise the following:

	
	For the nine-month period

	
	ended 30 September 2014

	
	Consolidated

financial
information
	Company
financial
information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	

	Opening balance of the period
	2,126,419
	1,345,048

	Increase (decrease) during the period 
	268,456
	565,334

	
	
	

	Closing balance of the period
	2,394,875
	1,910,382


	
	For the nine-month period

	
	ended 30 September 2014

	
	Consolidated

financial
information
	Company
financial
information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	

	Discount rate
	
4.46%
	
4.46%

	Salary increase rate
	
3.94%
	
3.94%

	Mortality rate
	
80.00%
	
80.00%

	
	
(Thai Mortality)
	
(Thai Mortality)

	
	
Table B.E.2551
	
Table B.E.2551
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Shared capital and warrants
28.1
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 2014 which was held on 8 April 2014, has resolved as follows:
Approved to increase the registed capital for another Baht 165,000,000 from Baht 648,522,876 to be Baht 813,522,876 at the par value of Baht 0.10 and shall be allocated as follow:

28.1.1
Reservation for the exercise of warrants to purchase ordinary shares of the Company No. 2 (“LIVE-W2”) in the amount of 150,000,000 shares, and
28.1.2
Reservation for the exercise of conversion right of convertible debentures in the amount of 1,500,000,000 shares.

28
Shared capital and warrants (Cont’d)
28.2
The exercise of warrants to purchase ordinary share of Live Incorporation Public Company Limited, have movement for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 as follows:
Warrants No. 1 (“LIVE-W1”)
	
	
Unit

	
	

	Warrants had not been excercised as at 1 January 2014
	929,783,544

	Warrants had been exercised as at 21 January 2014
	(821,596,658)

	Warrants expired
	(108,186,886)

	
	

	Outstanding warrants as at 30 September 2014
	-       


The Company received Baht 164,273,073 from the exercise of LIVE-W1 for 821,596,658 units. On 6 February 2014, the Company registed the increase in capital, being 1,088,622,091 ordinary shares for shares from the exercise with the Department of Business Development. The shares were allowed to be traded on Stock Exchange of Thailand on 13 February 2014.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company received Baht 38,065,596 from the exercise of LIVE-W2 for 189,571,644 units.  On 6 January 2014, the Company registed the increase in capital being 251,182,425 ordinary shares for shares from the exercise with the Department of Business Development.  The shares were allowed to be traded on Stock Exchange of Thailand on 10 January 2014.

Warrants No. 2 (“LIVE-W2”)
	
	
Unit

	
	

	Warrants had not been excercised as at 1 January 2014
	864,971,737

	Warrants had been exercised as at 21 January 2014
	(428,020)

	
	

	Outstanding warrants as at 30 September 2014
	864,543,717


As at 31 March 2014, the Company received Baht 42,802 from the exercise of LIVE-W2 for 428,020 units.  On 9 April 2014, the Company registed the increase in capital, being 428,020 ordinary shares for shares from the exercise with the Department of Business Development.  The shares were allowed to be traded in Stock Exchange of Thailand on 17 April 2014.

28.3
The Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders No. 2/2013 which was held on 25 November 2013, has resolved as follows:

Approved changes to the number of ordinary shares outstanding from the exercise of warrants (“LIVE-W1”) of 1,881,428,600 shares with a par value of Baht 0.10. Also allot 870 million ordinary shares at the par of Baht 0.10 each to support the exercise of the issuance of warrants (“LIVE-W2”)
Approved the decrease in capital from Baht 749,665,736 to Baht 648,522,876 by canceling 1,011,428,600 ordinary shares at the par value of Baht 0.10 each totalling of Baht 101,142,860 which are left from the available shares from the change in condition of allotment to support the exercise of issued warrants (“LIVE-W2”).
Approved the issue of 870,000,000 units of warrant (LIVE-W2) to their existing shareholders as at 9 December 2013 at the selling price of Baht 0 per share: in a ratio of 5 ordinary shares 1 warrant. 1 warrant can be used to buy 1 new ordinary share at the exercise price of Baht 0.10. At the book closing date on 6 December 2013, 
the Company alloted 864,971,737 units of warrant to the existing shareholders. For the remaining unsold 5,028,263 units, the warrants will be cancelled after the expiration of the warrants (8 December 2016).

On of 27 December 2013, 864,971,737 of the Company’s warrant are allowed to be traded on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The warrant can be exercised every 3 months.  The first and the last exercise dates are on 31 March 2014 and on 8 December 2016, respectively.

The approval to issue and offer the Warrant (“LIVE-W2”) with the average price per new issued share lower than 90% of the market price, according to the Rights and Duties of the Issuer and Holders of Warrants, the execise price and execise ratio shall be adjusted to the warrants No.1 (“LIVE-W1”) as follows : 

Old Exercise Price         
Baht 0.1735 per shares
Old Exercise Ratio
1 Warrant for 1.1524 Ordinary Shares

New Exercise Price
Baht 0.1509 per shares
New Exercise Ratio
1 Warrant for 1 Ordinary Shares
28
Shared capital and warrants (Cont’d)
28.4
The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2013 which was held on 5 July 2013, has resolved as follows :

28.4.1
Approved the reduction of registered capital from Baht 929,955,774.50 to Baht 735,155,457.80 by reducing 1,948,003,167 ordinary shares which have not been issued, at the par value of Baht 0.10, totalling Baht 194,800,316.70. 
28.4.2
Approved the investment in Strega Public Company Limited by purchasing 40,000 ordinary shares, representing 40% of the total shares in such company, from Ms. Kanittha Brahmasakha Na Sakonnakhon, the existing shareholder, at the price of Baht 140,000,000. The payment shall be made by cash of Baht 20,000,000 and by 145,102,782 newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at the par value of Baht 0.10 and offer price of Baht 0.827 per share (the offer price is based on the average market price of the Company shares during 14 business days prior to the date of the Board of Directors Meeting), totaling amounting by Baht of 120,000,000. The meeting authorise the Chief of Executive Board to execute all agreements related to the transaction and to take any action related thereto.
28.4.3
Approved the increase of registered capital by Baht 14,510,278.20, from Baht 735,155,457.80 
to Baht 749,665,736, by issuing 145,102,782 ordinary shares at the par value of Baht 0.10 
and resolved to allot the newly issued shares to Ms. Kanittha Brahmasakha Na Sakonnakhon, the existing shareholder of Strega Co., Ltd. as a payment for the ordinary shares of Strega Co., Ltd, at the offer price of Baht 0.827 per share and on 18 July 2013, the Company has registered the increase paid-up share capital to such person with the ministry of commerce (held on the Company’s share capital by 4.74%). 
29
Other income

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	For the nine-month
	For the nine-month

	
	periods ended 30 September
	periods ended 30 September

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue from debts renegociated 
	2,459,948
	3,708,746
	-       
	-       

	Interest income
	3,373,132
	248,498
	4,128,924
	791,591

	Reversal of long outstanding unearned revenue
	1,461,968
	-       
	-       
	-       

	Dividend income
	-       
	-       
	28,000,000
	-       

	Management fee (Note 32 a))
	-       
	-       
	2,700,000
	2,700,000

	Other income
	1,019,028
	1,107,412
	1,205,344
	967,935

	
	
	
	
	

	
	8,314,076
	5,064,656
	36,034,268
	4,459,526


30
Income tax

Reconciliation of income tax expenses for the nine-month periods ended 30 September 2014 and 2013 comprises:

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	For the nine-month
	For the nine-month

	
	periods ended 30 September
	periods ended 30 September

	
	
	(Restated)
	
	

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Current income tax on taxable profit
	
	
	
	

	   for the period
	(149,104)
	(1,082,927)
	-       
	-       

	Origination of temporary differences (Note 21)
	(3,401,895)
	(168,629)
	113,067
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Total income tax 
	(3,550,999)
	(1,251,556)
	113,067
	-       


31
Earnings per share 
31.1
Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	
	(Restated)
	
	

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	
	
	
	

	For the three-month period 
	
	
	
	

	   ended 30 September
	
	
	
	

	Net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
	
	
	
	

	   shareholders (Baht)
	(7,638,540)
	12,647,595
	13,690,091
	23,956,852

	Weighted average number of
	
	
	
	

	   ordinary shares in issue during
	
	
	
	

	   the period (shares)
	5,706,944,073
	3,509,087,249
	5,706,944,073
	3,509,087,249

	
	
	
	
	

	Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht)
	(0.001)
	
0.004
	
0.002
	
0.007


	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	
	(Restated)
	
	

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	
	
	
	

	For the nine-month period 
	
	
	
	

	   ended 30 September
	
	
	
	

	Net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
	
	
	
	

	   shareholders (Baht)
	(31,981,206)
	38,456,366
	(17,362,389)
	57,465,107

	Weighted average number of
	
	
	
	

	   Ordinary shares in issue during
	
	
	
	

	   the period (shares)
	5,531,132,220
	3,247,995,302
	5,531,132,220
	3,247,995,302

	
	
	
	
	

	Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht)
	(0.006)
	
0.012
	(0.003)
	
0.018


31
Earnings per share (Cont’d)
31.2
Diluted earnings per share 
The diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has dilutive potential ordinary shares that are warrants (Note 28). The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the warrant. The difference is added to the denominator as an issue of ordinary shares for no consideration. No adjustment is made to earnings.

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	
	(Restated)
	
	

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	
	
	
	

	For the three-month period 
	
	
	
	

	   ended 30 September
	
	
	
	

	Net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
	
	
	
	

	   shareholders (Baht)
	(7,638,540)
	12,647,595
	13,690,091
	23,956,854

	Weighted average number of 
	
	
	
	

	   common shares (basic) (shares)
	5,706,944,073
	3,509,087,249
	5,706,944,073
	3,509,087,249

	Effect of conversion of warrants (shares)
	588,062,360
	815,648,552
	588,062,360
	815,648,552

	
	
	
	
	

	Weighted average number of 
	
	
	
	

	   common shares (diluted) (shares)
	6,295,006,433
	4,324,735,801
	6,295,006,433
	4,324,735,801

	
	
	
	
	

	Diluted earnings (loss) per shares (Baht)
	(0.001)
	
0.003
	
0.002
	
0.006


	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	
	(Restated)
	
	

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	
	
	
	

	For the nine-month period 
	
	
	
	

	   ended 30 September
	
	
	
	

	Net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary 
	
	
	
	

	   shareholders (Baht)
	(31,981,206)
	38,456,366
	(17,362,389)
	57,465,107

	Weighted average number of 
	
	
	
	

	   common shares (basic) (shares)
	5,531,132,220
	3,247,995,302
	5,531,132,220
	3,247,995,302

	Effect of conversion of warrants (shares)
	588,062,360
	815,648,552
	588,062,360
	815,648,552

	
	
	
	
	

	Weighted average number of 
	
	
	
	

	   common shares (diluted) (shares)
	6,119,194,580
	4,063,643,854
	6,119,194,580
	4,063,643,854

	
	
	
	
	

	Diluted earnings (loss) per shares (Baht)
	(0.005)
	
0.010
	(0.003)
	
0.014


32
Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Company.  Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.  

The significant investments in associates and subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 and 12.
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Related party transactions (Cont’d)
Relationship between the Company and related parties 

	Related company name
	Relationship

	
	

	Live TV Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	Live Media Group Public Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	Thaichaiyo TV Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	POP TV Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	LSB Services Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	Live Estate Company Limited
	Subsidiary

	LMG Estate Company Limited
	Subsidiary of Live Media Group Public Company Limited

	Strega Public Company Limited
	

	   (Former “Strega Company Limited”)
	Associated since 15 July 2013

	Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	Associated since 16 May 2014

	Box Office Entertainment Company Limited
	Associated

	Infinity Pro Co., Ltd.
	Major shareholder and director is the son of 

	
	   the Company’s director

	Digital Right Pictures Public Company Limited *
	Subsidiary until 10 May 2012

	In and On Studio Company Limited *
	Subsidiary until 4 May 2012

	Live Radio Company Limited *
	Subsidiary until 4 May 2012

	Trillion Television Company Limited **
	Subsidiary until 18 October 2013

	Popstarz Management Company Limited
	Subsidiary of Live TV Co., Ltd. until 4 May 2012

	
	

	Related person
	

	Mr. Pakapon  Sansirikul
	Shareholder of subsidiary

	Ms. Kanittha Brahmasakha Na Sakonnakhon
	Shareholder of the Company and associated


* Under liquidation process

** Liquidated on 29 May 2013

The following significant transactions were carried out with related parties:

	
	Pricing policies

	
	2014
	2013

	
	
	

	Revenues from television media
	Approximate to those charged to third parties
	Approximate to those charged to third parties

	Revenues from digital channel
	
	

	   service management
	At cost plus 5%
	At cost plus 5%

	
	And Mutually agreed price by contract on
	And Mutually agreed price by contract on

	
	   a monthly Baht 800,000.
	   a monthly Baht 800,000.

	Revenues income on
	
	

	   advertising space
	Market price
	Market price

	Management service income
	Baht 300,000 per month
	Baht 300,000 per month

	Interest income
	1.000% - 6.875% per annum
	1.000% - 3.000%, per annum

	Rental income
	Mutually agreed price
	None

	Revenues from technical 
	
	

	   and sale support
	Mutually agreed price
	None

	Revenues from right of 
	
	

	   exploitation
	At cost plus 5% - 10%
	None

	Other income
	Mutually agreed price
	Mutually agreed price

	Dividend income
	Same price with a third party that 
	Same price with a third party that 

	
	   has declared
	   has declared

	Cost of service
	Mutually agreed price by contract on 
	Mutually agreed price by contract on 

	
	   a monthly Baht 200,000 - Baht 800,000 
	   a monthly Baht 200,000 - Baht 800,000 

	Administrative expenses
	Mutually agreed price by contract on 
	Mutually agreed price by contract on 

	
	   a monthly Baht 300,000
	   a monthly Baht 300,000

	Land rental
	Baht 2.25 million - 3.60 million per annum
	Baht 2.25 million - 3.60 million per annum

	Technical and sale support 
	
	

	   expenses
	30% of revenues as agreed by contract
	None

	Right of exploitation expense
	Mutually agreed price
	None

	Interest expense
	1.00% - 3.00% per annum
	1.00% - 3.00% per annum

	Guarantee
	Free of charge
	Free of charge

	Managements’ remuneration
	Approved at the annual general meeting 2014
	Approved at the annual general meeting 2013
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Related party transactions (Cont’d)
Revenues and expenses transaction between the Group with related parties

a)
Revenues and expenses transaction between the Group with related parties for nine-month periods ended 
30 September 2014 and 2013.

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	
30 September
	
30 September
	
30 September
	
30 September

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	Revenues from digital channel 
	
	
	
	

	   service management
	
	
	
	

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	7,508,478
	7,685,643

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	7,200,000
	7,200,000

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	-       
	6,400,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	14,708,478
	21,285,643

	
	
	
	
	

	Management service income (Note 29)
	
	
	
	

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	2,700,000
	2,700,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Interest income
	
	
	
	

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	1,611,130
	-       
	1,611,130
	-       

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	502,047
	551,584

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	92,356
	-       

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	40,389
	31,458

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	18,582
	-       

	   LMG Estate Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	124,000
	-       

	   Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	32,627
	-       
	32,627
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	1,643,757
	-       
	2,421,131
	583,042

	
	
	
	
	

	Rental income
	
	
	
	

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	360,000
	240,000

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	288,000
	192,000

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	234,000
	156,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	882,000
	588,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Service income
	
	
	
	

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	140,000
	-       
	140,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Dividend income
	
	
	
	

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	20,000,000
	-       

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	8,000,000
	-       
	8,000,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	8,000,000
	-       
	28,000,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Cost of services
	
	
	
	

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	-       
	800,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	
	
	
	

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	-       
	60,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Land rental
	
	
	
	

	   Infinity Pro Co., Ltd.
	2,317,500
	2,317,500
	2,317,500
	2,317,500

	
	
	
	
	

	Doubtful debts (Reversal)
	
	
	
	

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	6,750,389
	10,687,457

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	-       
	10,520

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	-       
	(20,073,921)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	6,750,389
	(9,375,944)
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Related party transactions (Cont’d)
a)
Revenues and expenses transaction between the Group with related parties for nine-month periods ended 
30 September 2014 and 2013.

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited
	
Unaudited

	
	
30 September
	
30 September
	
30 September
	
30 September

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Remuneration of directors and executives
	
	
	
	

	   Short-term benefits
	11,561,665
	6,169,382
	8,884,804
	5,809,382

	   Post employment benefits
	636,740
	64,348
	636,740
	64,348

	
	
	
	
	

	
	12,198,405
	6,233,730
	9,521,544
	5,873,730


b)
Outstanding balance between from purchase/sales of services the Group with related parties as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 are as follows:
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Trade accounts receivable (Note 7)
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	-       
	263,587,402
	-       
	263,587,402

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	31,941,582
	27,335,167

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	6,976,400
	9,458,800

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	23,501,480
	16,514,380

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	263,587,402
	62,419,462
	316,895,749

	   Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(263,587,402)
	(40,066,850)
	(297,124,253)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	22,352,612
	19,771,496

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued income (Note 7)
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	-       
	10,153,894
	-       
	10,153,894

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	2,383,960
	2,315,480

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	359,520
	359,520

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	-       
	84,513
	-       
	-       

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	37,450
	-       
	37,450
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	37,450
	10,238,407
	2,780,930
	12,828,894

	   Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(10,232,878)
	(144,351)
	(10,298,245)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	37,450
	5,529
	2,636,579
	2,530,649

	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid expenses (Note 7)
	
	
	
	

	   Box Office Entertainment Co., Ltd.
	-       
	11,359,200
	-       
	-       

	   Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(11,359,200)
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	-       
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid assets rental (Note 20)
	
	
	
	

	   Infinity Pro Co., Ltd.
	1,297,500
	615,000
	1,297,500
	615,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Share capital payable (Note 23)
	
	
	
	

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	10,000,000
	-       
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Related party transactions (Cont’d)
b)
Outstanding balance between from purchase/sales of services the Group with related parties as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 are as follows: (Cont’d)

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited 

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Advance payment (Note 7)
	
	
	
	

	   Ms. Kanittha Brahmasakha 
	
	
	
	

	      Na Sakonnakhon - withholding tax
	16,077,176
	16,077,176
	16,077,176
	16,077,176

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	-       
	34,366
	-       
	10,520

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	29,095
	-       

	   Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	106,060
	-       
	106,060
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	16,183,236
	16,111,542
	16,212,331
	16,087,696

	   Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(16,077,176)
	(34,366)
	(16,077,176)
	(10,520)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	106,060
	16,077,176
	135,155
	16,077,176

	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued interest income (Note 7)
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	-       
	24,786,979
	-       
	24,786,979

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	-       
	6,516,587
	-       
	6,516,587

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	2,704,240
	2,202,193

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	88,138
	47,749

	   Live Media Group Public Company
	
	
	
	

	      Limited
	-       
	-       
	97,534
	5,178

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	19,212
	630

	   LMG Estate Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	124,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Associate
	
	
	
	

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	541,849
	-       
	541,849
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	541,849
	31,303,566
	3,574,973
	33,559,316

	   Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(31,303,566)
	(1,573,585)
	(32,836,762)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	541,849
	-       
	2,001,388
	722,554


32
Related party transactions (Cont’d)
c)
Short-term loans to related companies
	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited
	
Unaudited
	
 Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	2014
	2013
	2014
	2013

	
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term loans to related companies
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	-       
	141,272,934
	-       
	141,272,934

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	-       
	101,217,567
	-       
	101,217,567

	   In and On Studio Co., Ltd.
	-       
	12,763,982
	-       
	12,763,982

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	-       
	4,272,998
	-       
	-       

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	68,500,000
	64,300,000

	   Live Media Group Public 
	
	
	
	

	      Company Limited
	-       
	-       
	8,500,000
	3,500,000

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	5,400,000
	5,400,000

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	2,498,066
	1,000,000

	   LMG Estate Co., Ltd.
	-       
	-       
	95,000,000
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	Associate
	
	
	
	

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	60,000,000
	-       
	60,000,000
	-       

	   Skenique Group Co., Ltd. 
	3,432,321
	-       
	3,432,321
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	63,432,321
	259,527,481
	243,330,387
	329,454,483

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	-       
	(259,527,481)
	(69,700,000)
	(324,954,483)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	63,432,321
	-       
	173,630,387
	4,500,000


The movement of short-term loans to related companies for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 are as follows:

	
	Consolidated financial information

	
	
As at
	
	
	
As at

	
	
1 January
	Movement
	
30 September

	
	
2014
	
Addition
	
Deduction
	
2014

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term loans to related companies
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	141,272,934
	-       
	-       
	141,272,934

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	101,217,567
	-       
	-       
	101,217,567

	   In and On Studio Co., Ltd.
	12,763,982
	-       
	-       
	12,763,982

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	4,272,998
	-       
	-       
	4,272,998

	
	
	
	
	

	Associate
	
	
	
	

	   Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	-       
	3,800,000
	(367,679)
	3,432,321

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	-       
	145,000,000
	(85,000,000)
	60,000,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	259,527,481
	148,800,000
	(85,367,679)
	322,959,802

	
	
	
	
	

	Less
Allowance for impairment of
	
	
	
	

	
   short-term loans to
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	(141,272,934)
	-       
	-       
	(141,272,934)

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	(101,217,567)
	-       
	-       
	(101,217,567)

	   In and On Studio Co., Ltd.
	(12,763,982
	-       
	-       
	(12,763,982

	   Popstarz Management Co., Ltd.
	(4,272,998)
	-       
	-       
	(4,272,998)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	(259,527,481)
	-       
	-       
	(259,527,481)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	-       
	148,800,000
	(85,367,679)
	63,432,321
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c)
Short-term loans to related companies (Cont’d)
The movement of short-term loans to related companies for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2014 are as follows: (Cont’d)

	
	Company financial information

	
	
As at
	
	
	
As at

	
	
1 January
	Movement
	
30 September

	
	
2014
	
Addition
	
Deduction
	
2014

	
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht
	
Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term loans to related companies
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	141,272,934
	-       
	(141,272,934)
	-       

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	101,217,567
	-       
	(101,217,567)
	-       

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	64,300,000
	4,200,000
	-       
	68,500,000

	   In and On Studio Co., Ltd.
	12,763,982
	-       
	(12,763,982)
	-       

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	5,400,000
	-       
	-       
	5,400,000

	   Live Media Group Public 
	
	
	
	

	      Company Limited
	3,500,000
	20,000,000
	(15,000,000)
	8,500,000

	   Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd.
	1,000,000
	6,500,000
	(5,001,934)
	2,498,066

	   LMG Estate Co., Ltd.
	-       
	95,000,000
	-       
	95,000,000

	
	
	
	
	

	Associate
	
	
	
	

	   Strega Public Company Limited
	-       
	145,000,000
	(85,000,000)
	60,000,000

	   Skenique Group Co., Ltd.
	-       
	3,800,000
	(367,679)
	3,432,321

	
	
	
	
	

	
	329,454,483
	274,500,000
	(360,624,096)
	243,330,387

	
	
	
	
	

	Allowance for impairment
	
	
	
	

	   of short-term loans to
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	   Digital Right Pictures 
	
	
	
	

	      Public Company Limited
	(141,272,934)
	-       
	141,272,934
	-       

	   Live Radio Co., Ltd.
	(101,217,567)
	-       
	101,217,567
	-       

	   Live TV Co., Ltd.
	(64,300,000)
	-       
	-       
	(64,300,000)

	   In and On Studio Co., Ltd.
	(12,763,982)
	-       
	12,763,982
	-       

	   POP TV Co., Ltd.
	(5,400,000)
	-       
	-       
	(5,400,000)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	(324,954,483)
	-       
	255,254,483
	(69,700,000)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	4,500,000
	
	
	173,630,387
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The details of segment information
	
	Certain part of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 

for the nine-month periods ended 30 September (Unaudited) (Baht)

	
	Revenues from digital channel 
	
	
	

	
	management
	Revenues from television media
	Rental income on advertising space
	Total

	
	2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Revenues
	95,866,895
	137,708,612
	40,477,275
	42,839,938
	43,223,042
	45,028,928
	179,567,212
	225,577,478

	Cost of services
	(79,502,023)
	(80,883,442)
	(33,356,815)
	(17,877,977)
	(25,927,608)
	(22,153,387)
	(138,786,446)
	(120,914,806)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gross profit
	16,364,872
	56,825,170
	7,120,460
	24,961,961
	17,295,434
	22,875,541
	40,780,766
	104,662,672

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other income
	
	
	
	
	
	
	8,314,076
	5,064,656

	Servicing expenses
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(7,002,942)
	(5,960,806)

	Administrative expenses
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(72,909,167)
	(57,903,285)

	Doubtful debts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(20,331,015)
	(1,933,392)

	Other gains (losses)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   - Net gain (loss) on disposal of assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(4,927,969)
	26,393

	   - Net gain (loss) on exchange rate 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	242,714
	(154,065)

	Finance costs
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(200,892)
	(225,584)

	Share of profit (loss) from investments in associates
	
	
	
	
	
	
	27,204,576
	(2,338,350)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Profit (loss) before income tax
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(28,829,853)
	41,238,239

	Income tax
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,550,999)
	(1,251,556)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Profit (loss) for the period
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(32,380,852)
	39,986,683


	
	Certain part of the consolidated statements of financial position (Baht)

	
	Revenues from digital channel 
	
	
	

	
	management
	Revenues from television media
	Rental income on advertising space
	Total 

	
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited
	
Unaudited
	
Audited

	
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December
	
30 September
	
31 December

	
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013
	
2014
	
2013

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Segment assets 
	119,116,309
	54,830,478
	337,357
	382,059
	37,790,603
	40,985,654
	157,244,269
	96,198,191

	Unallocated assets 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	658,646,509
	553,855,450

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Consolidated total assets 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	815,890,778
	650,053,641


34
Commitments 

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group has commitments according to agreements and contingent liabilities as follows:

34.1
The Group has commitments to paid for rental and service as follows:

	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Unaudited
	Unaudited

	
	As at 30 September 2014
	As at 30 September 2014

	
	Lease
	Service
	Lease
	Service

	
	agreement
	agreement
	agreement
	agreement

	Due within the year ending
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	30 September 2015
	9,804,778
	23,766,000
	3,355,673
	3,230,000

	30 September 2016
	9,629,537
	-       
	3,686,800
	-       

	30 September 2017
	4,584,741
	-       
	2,700,000
	-       

	30 September 2018
	318,421
	-       
	-       
	-       

	
	
	
	
	

	
	24,337,477
	23,766,000
	9,742,473
	3,230,000


	
	Consolidated
	Company

	
	financial information
	financial information

	
	Audited
	Audited

	
	As at 31 December 2013
	As at 31 December 2013

	
	Lease
	Service
	Lease
	Service

	
	agreement
	agreement
	agreement
	agreement

	Due within the year ending
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht
	Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	31 December 2014
	15,290,838
	33,571,162
	6,915,430
	4,893,000

	31 December 2015
	10,435,159
	12,418,200
	6,843,120
	3,918,200

	31 December 2016
	6,639,493
	1,779,800
	5,379,800
	1,779,800

	31 December 2017
	1,800,000
	-        
	1,800,000
	-        

	
	
	
	
	

	
	34,165,490
	47,769,162
	20,938,350
	10,591,000


34.2
The Company has commitment from rental for satellite signal agreement as specified in the agreement until August 2017.

34.3
The Company has commitment from building construction and utilities system on land rental as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 amounting to Baht 5.86 million and Baht 42.50 million, respectively.

34.4
31 December 2013, the subsidiary has commitment from right to exploitation agreement amounting to Baht 6.25 million (30 September 2014 is nil) (Note 19).

34
Commitments (Cont’d)

34.5
License from the national broadcasting or telecommunications

The Company and two subsidiaries have got an International Direct Dialing License from the National Broadcasting and Telecommunications Commission (NBTC) to provide telecommunication services as follows:

	Company
	Period

	
	

	Live Incorporation Public Co., Ltd. License
	

	   Radio or television broadcasting business
	2 September 2013 - 1 September 2028

	      License for the radio or television 
	

	      Network services (not using radio)
	

	   License from the national broadcasting 
	24 March 2014 - 23 March 2016

	      or telecommunications Vlike Channel
	

	
	

	Thaichaiyo TV Co., Ltd. license
	

	   License from the national broadcasting 
	

	      or telecommunications THAICHAIYO Channel
	24 March 2014 - 23 March 2016

	
	

	POP TV Co., Ltd. license
	

	   License from the national broadcasting 
	

	      or telecommunications POP Channel
	24 March 2014 - 23 March 2016


The Company and its subsidiaries are obligated to comply with legal requirements and the NBTC announcement according to the permit on that the Company and its subsidiaries awarded.

35
Contingent liabilities

35.1
As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Company has contingent liabilities from guarantee for credit line of associates amounting to Baht 315.45 million and Baht 130.78 million, respectively (Note 11).

35.2
As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Subsidiaries has contingent liabilities from letter of guarantee issued by bank for guarantee rental agreement amounting of Baht 1.74 million and Baht 2.26 million, respectively which are guaranteed by deposits at financial institutions (Note 10).

36
Lawsuit

On 3 September 2012, a subsidiary had been sued to pay for the damages expense from stopping service rendered.  The Court judged the adjudication on 29 July 2013, and the Company’s lawyer had concluded such adjudication that the subsidiary has to cancel service render to the plaintiff and if the subsidiary does not proceed or not be able to proceed, the subsidiary has to pay for damages expense of Baht 277,500 per month since the sued date (3 September 2012) until 19 August 2014.  And on 26 December 2013, the Company’s lawyer had a letter to inform to the plaintiff and the plaintiff’s lawyer about the adjudication compliance (cancellation of signal withhold and deliver the signal channel to the plaintiff), and a letter of notification of a delivery of bandwidth to provide 
a service as promised in the contract was sent to the plaintiff again on 21 January 2014 as well as the argument was filed to the Civil Court, Ministry of justice, for paying the attorney’s fee and other costs according to the judgment of the court and also reporting the completion of compliance with the judgement to the court.  
The Company’s lawyer has an opinion that the subsidiary has not to pay for such damage expense due to the judgment of the court imposed the conditions for the subsidiary to act gradually by firstly ordering the subsidiary to terminated a suspension of service usage and deliver the bandwidth.  After proceeding these actions, 
the subsidiary shall not be liable for the damage payment.  If the subsidiary does not proceed or cannot proceed the actions, the subsidiary shall be liable for a damage payment as the judgment since the date of filing to 
the contract’s expiry date.  The judgement does not enforce the subsidiary to be liable to pay for damage since the date of filing to the date of delivery of bandwidth.  So, the subsidiary has not recorded for liability as such adjudication in the financial statements.

However, on 12 May 2014, the subsidiary and the plaintiff are entered into an agreement that both of them will no longer call any claims arising from bandwidth contractual disputes under civil and criminal law and under any other right.

37
The issue and offer for sale of convertible debentures to a specific foreign investor 

The Annual General Meeting which was held on Tuesday 8 April 2014, resolved to approve the issue and offer for sale of convertible debentures to a specific foreign investor (Private Placement) in the amount of not exceeding Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) 20 million or its equivalent amount in other currencies as follows:
37.1
Resolved to approve the issue and offer for sale of convertible debentures in the amount of not exceeding SGD 20 million or its equivalent amount in other currencies to a specific foreign investor (Private Placement) that is Advance Opportunities Fund (“AO Fund”).

The Company is able to issue and offer for sale of convertible debentures of 2 tranches as follows:

Convertible Debentures Tranche 1: value of not exceeding SGD 10 million or its equivalent amount in other currencies, separated into 20 sub-tranches, which each sub-tranche will not exceed SGD 500,000 or its equivalent amount in other currencies.

Convertible Debentures Tranche 2: value of not exceeding SGD 10 million or its equivalent amount in other currencies, separated into 20 sub-tranches, which each sub-tranche will not exceed SGD 500,000 or its equivalent amount in other currencies.

Conversion prices

The Fund debentures shall be entitled to exercise any on of the following conversion price:

(1)
Fixed Conversion Price

145% of the average of the daily traded volume weighted average prices per share for the 45 business days immediately prior to:

a)
For Tranche 1 Convertible Debentures: the date of Subscription Agreement;

b)
For Tranche 2 Convertible Debentures: the issue date of the Tranche 2 Convertible Debentures.

(2)
Floating Conversion Price

For Tranche 1 Convertible Debenture: 85% of the average closing prices per share on any 3 consecutive business day during 45 business days immediately preceding the relevant conversion date of the convertible debentures.

For Tranche 2 Convertible Debenture: 90% of the average closing prices per share on any 3 consecutive business days during 45 business days immediately preceding the relevant conversion date of the convertible debentures.

37
The issue and offer for sale of convertible debentures to a specific foreign investor (Cont’d) 

37.2
Resolved to approve that due to the fluctuation of market price of shares as a result of the Company’s performance and external factors which could not be controlled i.e. the world economy. The offer for sale of convertible debentures to specific foreign investor (Private Placement) at this time may cause the determination method of the conversion price possibly to result the conversion price lower than 90% of the market price (conditional on the fluctuation of the market price during the period used for calculation).  This may be deemed as an offer for sale of convertible debentures at low price (i.e. its conversion price lower than 90% of the market price).  Thus, the Shareholders’ Meeting resolved to approve for complying with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 28/2551 Re: Application of and Approval of offer for Sale of Newly Issued Shares and the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 16/2552 Re: Criteria, Conditions and Procedures for Application and Approval of the Offer for Sale of Newly Issued Debentures to Investors in Foreign Countries, in relation to the offer for sale of the convertible debentures at low price (i.e. its conversion price lower than 90% of the market price) to specific person.  

37.3
Resolved to authorise the Board of Directors and/or person(s) authorised by the Board of Directors to consider the market conditions at the time of the issuance of convertible debentures for the maximum benefits to the shareholders.

As at 28 May 2014, the offer for sale of convertible debentures has been already approved by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

37.4
First issued and offered for sale of Convertible Departures 
On 16 July 2014, the Company issued and offered for sale of Convertible Debentures to Advance Opportunities Fund (“AO Fund”), having Advance Capital Partners Ltd. (“ACP”) as a Fund Manager.  At this time the Company issued and offered for sale of convertible debentures of the first sub-tranche of Tranche 1, of which 10 certificates were issued.  Each certificate has value of SGD 50,000, totaling of SGD 500,000 or equivalent to Baht 12,500,000 (exchange rate of Baht 25 per Singapore Dollar).  On 16 July 2014, the Company was notified from AO Fund by ACP about the conversion of Tranche 1 of convertible debentures.  AO Fund by ACP has the right to choose either the Fixed Conversion Price or the Floating Conversion Price as stated in Note 34.1. Subsequently, AO Fund by ACP exercised its right by using the floating conversion price to convert its debentures to the Company ordinary share of 49,563,838 shares at Baht 0.2522 per ordinary share.  The Company registered the increase capital for shares from the exercise with the Department of Business Development on 28 July 2014.  The shares were allowed to be trade on Stock Exchange of Thailand on 4 August 2014.
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